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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Little River County Courthouse is a two storey brick structure topped with
an impressive octagonal deome. Constructed in 1907, the red brick building has
a sguare floor plan with the dome rising from the center of the hipped roof.

The northeast facade features a two storey -poriico with the brick pediment
rising above the roofline. The pediment displavs a semi-circular arch trimmed
in white. Projecting about gix feet from the facade, the porch is semi-enclosed
with ell~-shape brick columns on either end. Set into the porch opening are

two round, tapering columns with Ionic capitals. The porch shelters the center
bay of thea facade and covers the primarv entrance to the courthouss.

This symmetrical structure is surrounded by a water table at the base and a
d=ntiled cornice over brick corbelling just below the rocfline. In contrast

to the dark red brick, these and other architectural detalls are worked in
white.

211 windows have cast stone lugsills; window heads on the second storey are
g2z in rechangmlar franmss, while those on the ground fleoor fezature simple

S - g e, ey "y - w7y e
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with the main entry, the center bay, second-storev windows on Loth the front
ard rear elevations have wide “transoms with a lattice-like design. Somawhat
like the facade, the center bay on the rear elevation rises slightly higher’
than the flanking bays.

The center of thz building is ecovered with a hip roof which flatiens out arourd
the edges. Set into the hip roof is a massive octagonal dome covered with
zilver~colored tiles. At the base of the segmental dom=2 each side has a
horizontally set rectangular window £illed with small sguare lights:

Trough the dome dominates the structure, several smaller features add an
interesting touch to the courthouse. The dentiled cornice, pediment covered

doars and windows and Ionic capitaled columns give the building a classical
flavor.

Szt in the center of a tree shaded city block, the building rests near the
railroad tracks which were responsible for Ashdewn's origin. BAs the city's
most architecturally significant structure, the Little River County Courthouss
is also the most prominent landmark in the county.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The largest number of architecturally significant public buildings in Arxkansas
ara the courthouses scattersd over the state's seventy-five counties. As the
center of local politics, the county courthouse is often the largest and most
costly building in the county. The Little River .County Courkthouse. in Ashdown
is one of the most significant local landmarks in this area of southwest

Arkansas. . -

Named for the water-way which marks its northern boundary, Little Rivsr County
was organized on March 5, 1857, from portions of Hempstead and Sevier Counties.

Tha firayt ecsunty courk was haeld 2% the Williowm Freeman Housa (adw Jaznrorsl)
locazed about +“en milegs northeest of Richmend. The Jollowing yeazr kthz connty
L seat was moved to Rocky Comfort near the western edge of the county.

Following a vote of the people in 1880, the county seat was moved to Richwmond
and housed in a structure containing four office rooms on the ground floor and
a large courtroom abbve. In 1882 the courthous2 burned, and Eor a time vacant
buildings and even the school were used to house county offices and sessions of
court. Eventually the citizens of Richmond donated enough money to construct

a new courthouse. ’ '

When the railrcads came te Little River County in the 1890's new towns sprang
up. The most prominent railrcad town was Ashdown, which developed where the
Peytonville—Richmond Road crossed the Texarkana-Fort Smith Railroad. Within
a few years the residents of Ashdown were petitioning te have the county seat
moved to their new community; however, at the same time the Rocky Comfort
community was petitioning for the return of the county seat.

Saveral elections wers held, and for a time Richmond prevented either Ashdown =
or Rocky Comfort from becoming the new county seat. QOn April 29, 1903, the I s
Arkansas Gazette carried the following note on the struggle for the county

seat:

Texarkana, April 28.-The celebrated Little River County seat contest
case was called for trial here today before Judge Smith of Camden,
sitting as special judge. The testimony, which is mostly in the
shape of depositions, is very wvoluminous, and the trial will in all
probability occupy several days. The fight is between Rocky Comfort
and Ashdown, both of which are represented by a great array of the
best legal talent in the state. Each wants to be ths county seabt. *
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Rocky Comfort was again declared the county seat, but a few years later another
election was held. Ashdown was then declared the winner, and in 1906 County
Judge T. E. Arnett ordered the recoxds moved to the Mizell-Locke Building
located west of the railroad tracks. In 1907 a permanen® courthouse was con~ .
structed, thus helping to insure Ashdown's c¢laim to be the county seatl. P

hrchitect Sidney Stewart designed this two-storey brick courthouse. The build-
ing has a sguare floor plan with entrancss on all four elevations. Rising from
the center of tha hipped roof is the structure’'s most striking feature, an
octagonal dome rising a full-storey above the rocofline. Other features, in-
cluding the Ionic-capital columns on the east and south elevations, pediments
over first floor doors and windows and dentils around the coxnice, give a
classical touch to the simple architectural style.

Zossbruereld dr 1807, the presact covrohouze has Douned b coaahyogumar lemo
than any other kuilding. As the largest and most significant structure in
Ashdown, the courthduse is alse an architectvral and historic landmark in
Little River County. It rests on its original tree-shaded site, the court
sguare at Ashdown.

ST b e Sl W AL,

* Arkansas Gazette, April 29, 1903.
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